
 

Memorandum 21-011 
TO:  Mayor Castner and Homer City Council 

FROM:  Rob Dumouchel, City Manager and Julie Engebretsen, Deputy City Planner 

DATE:  December 14, 2020 

SUBJECT: Payment of water and sewer assessments for Lot 4, Hodnik Subdivision 

A 21 acre parcel located between Lampert Lake and Kachemak Drive is currently for sale. This 
property is particularly popular with birdwatchers and ice skaters. Kachemak Moose Habitat, Inc 
(KMHI) is intending to purchase the land and retain it for conservation purposes. KMHI has a history 
of land acquisition in the Beluga Lake/Kachemak Drive area to preserve moose habitat (see 
attachment 1). KMHI also has a practice of allowing public access to their properties. KMHI would like 
to partner with the City to “waive” the existing water and sewer assessments (~$78,500). As the 
assessments are debts owed to the HAWSP fund, it is inappropriate to waive the assessments. 
Instead, staff recommends the Council consider paying off the assessments with available funds from 
the Land Acquisition Fund. 

Subject Parcel Information 

The subject parcel is identified as Township 6 South, Range 13 West, Section 22, Lot 4 Hodnick 
Subdivision Seward Meridian, Lot 4 Kenai Peninsula Borough parcel number 17936032. It is located 
between Kachemak Drive and the Homer Airport.  



 

The parcel is 21 acres in size and contains a large portion of Lampert Lake. The parcel is zoned 
“General Commercial 2,” but the opportunities for development are limited due to the lake and 
wetlands.  Lampert Lake and its adjacent wetlands provide both ecosystem services and recreational 
opportunities to the City’s residents and visitors. The parcel attracts migratory birds as well as 
moose. The parcel also attracts birdwatchers, amateur ecologists, environmental educators, and, 
when conditions are right, ice skaters. 

Assessment History 

At this time, the subject parcel is associated with approximately $78,500 in water and sewer 
assessments. The assessments, when paid, would refund the HAWSP Fund’s participation in the 
extension of water and sewer to this part of the City.  

The subject parcel is part of two districts: 

1. Kachemak Drive Phase I Sewer Special Assessment District (Resolution 04-11, approved by 
Council January 12, 2004) 

2. Kachemak Drive Phase 1 Water Special Assessment District (Resolution 05-80, approved by 
Council July 25, 2005) 

In 2005, the City Council adopted Resolution 05-50(A) to exempt certain lands from water and sewer 
assessments when the lands would be conserved for a public purpose or habitat protection. Over the 
years, the city has exempted at least six lots along Kachemak Drive for this purpose. Because of the 
impact “exemptions” or “waivers” have on the HAWSP Fund, staff does not recommend following the 
past practice of waiving any fees associated with the parcel. 

Prior resolutions which had provided “waivers” to assessments, included language that stated if a 
property benefiting from a waiver were later developed, the full assessment would come due. While 
the post-development concept is very valid, it is very difficult to administer. If Council wants to 
develop a program of this nature, Administration, Finance, and the City Attorney will need to 
collaborate on a program which can adequately address situations such as this. 



Request from Kachemak Moose Habitat, Inc. 

This fall, KMHI contacted the mayor to request an exemption (“wavier”) for the subject parcel (see 
attachment 2). The property is under private ownership, and is in the process of being purchased with 
the intent that KMHI will be the owner. Initially it was believed that there were approximately $30,000 
in assessments on the subject property, however further research determined that the amount is 
actually $78,500. At the time the assessments were approved, the land included two parcels; lot lines 
have since changed and it is now one large property with the two original two assessments.  

In exchange for the City paying the assessments, KMHI has proposed the following language as a deed 
restriction:  

“The above described real property is protected, in perpetuity, primarily for the purpose 
as a wetland and habitat conservation area.  The property shall be protected and 
managed in its natural condition for the preservation of its surface resources, vegetative 
cover, habitat for fish and wildlife, wetland hydrology and other water quality values of 
the property.  The property shall remain available for public recreational activities 
provided those activities do not conflict with this primary purpose.” 

 

Potential Funding Source 

Staff has identified the Land Acquisition Fund as a potential funding source. The fund currently has a 
balance of about $170,000. If the fund is used for these assessments, the remaining balance would 
be approximately $91,000. 

Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution. When the property transaction is complete with the 
recorded deed restriction, staff will bring forward an ordinance to pay the water and sewer 
assessments. 

Attachments 

1. Area Map 
2. KMHI letter  
3. Hodnik Subdivision Plat 
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Disclaimer:
It is expressly understood the City of
Homer, its council, board,
departments, employees and agents are
not responsible for any errors or omissions
contained herein, or deductions, interpretations
or conclusions drawn therefrom. 
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October 28, 2020 
 
Mayor Ken Castner 
Office of the Mayor 
City of Homer 
491 E. Pioneer Ave. 
Homer AK 99603 
 
RE:  Lampert Lake Acquisition 
 
Dear Mayor Kastner: 
 
Kachemak Moose Habitat Inc. (“KMH”) is currently negotiating the acquisition of 21 
acres of prime moose habitat land, which includes a large portion of Lampert Lake.  I 
know there has been previous attempts by the City to acquire this popular lake to no 
avail.  The KMH acquisition will help move the ownership out of private hands, make 
this popular skating lake more accessible to the public, protect high value wetlands and 
provide moose habitat in a popular viewing area.  Additionally Beth Trowbridge, Center 
for Alaskan Coastal Studies, has expressed a desire to utilize the property for field 
education classes.  We have always allowed public access to our properties as long as 
moose habitat is not damaged.  We believe the public will enjoy this environment for a 
long time to come.     
 
The Lampert Lake property is currently subject to about $30,000 in unpaid utility 
assessment, levied by the City of Homer.  In the past, the City has waived such fees so 
long as the impacted property remained in habit conservation status.  For example, 
attached is a City of Homer Resolution, passed in 2017, in which the City agreed to 
waive utility assessment fees related to a different property we placed into habitat 
conservation status.  This is what we propose for the Lampert Lake acquisition 
 
It has always been the intent of our organization to protect in perpetuity the wildlife 
habitat we acquire and we have such language in many of our property deeds.  Our 
previous agreements with the City specify that any changes to our properties’ protection 
status, such as development of any kind, would cause the waiver to be set aside and any 
assessment district fees to be immediately reinstated.   
 
   
 
We asked the owners of the Lampert Lake property to get the property appraised.  As a 
result, they reduced their asking price to a number we could agree on.  We have found 
funds to purchase the property, but the funder does not want to pay $30,000 in utility fees 
assessments.     
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Jan Keiser, City of Homer Public Work Director, is familiar with our organization and 
Julie Engebretsen, Assistant Planner, is familiar with KMH’s relationship with the City 
regarding previous Kachemak Drive property acquisitions.  Jan recommended I reach out 
to you and ask for help in resolving this.   I would like to schedule a brief meeting with 
you to discuss our proposal. 
 
Thank you for your consideration in these matters. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Lynn Whitmore, President 
KMH Board of Directors 
(907)299-1760 
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